
 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a 

Deddfwriaethol 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd 

Dyddiad: Dydd Llun, 5 Chwefror 2018 

Amser: 14.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Tanwen Summers 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6362  

SeneddMCD@cynulliad.cymru
------ 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

   

2 Offerynnau nad ydynt yn cynnwys materion i gyflwyno adroddiad 

arnynt o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 na 21.3 

 (Tudalennau 1 - 3)  

CLA(5)-05-18 – Papur 1 – Offerynnau statudol sydd ag adroddiadau clir 

Offerynnau’r Penderfyniad Negyddol 

2.1 SL(5)178 - Rheoliadau Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol 

(Cymru) 2016 (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol i Is-Ddeddfwriaeth) 2018 

   

Offerynnau’r Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Cadarnhaol 

2.2 SL(5)177 - Rheoliadau Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol 

(Cymru) 2016 (Diwygiadau Canlyniadol) 2018 

   

2.3 SL(5)179 - Rheoliadau Gofal Cymdeithasol Cymru (Pennu Gweithwyr Gofal 

Cymdeithasol) (Cofrestru) (Diwygio) 2018 

   

3 Offerynnau sy'n cynnwys materion i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt i’r 

Cynulliad o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 neu 21.3 

   

Offerynnau’r Weithdrefn Penderfyniad Cadarnhaol Cyfansawdd 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



3.1 SL(5)180 - Rheoliadau Gorfodi Gwastraff (Cymru a Lloegr) 2018  

 (Tudalennau 4 - 36) 

CLA(5)-05-18 – Papur 2 – Rheoliadau 

CLA(5)-05-18 – Papur 3 – Memorandwm Esboniadol 

CLA(5)-05-18 – Papur 4 – Adroddiad 

 

4 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 

cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes a ganlyn: 

   

5 Blaenraglen waith 

 (Tudalennau 37 - 39)  

CLA(5)-05-18 – Papur 5 – Blaenraglen waith 

6 Y Pwerau ym Mil yr UE (Ymadael) i wneud is-ddeddfwriaeth 

 (Tudalennau 40 - 44)  

CLA(5)-05-18 - Papur 6 - Materion Allweddol 

 

 

Dyddiad y cyfarfod nesaf  

 

12 Chwefror 2018 



 

Offerynnau Statudol sydd ag Adroddiadau Clir 

5 Chwefror 2018  

SL(5)178- Rheoliadau Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016  

(Diwygiadau Canlyniadol i Is-ddeddfwriaeth) 2018  

Gweithdrefn: Negyddol 

Gwneir y Rheoliadau hyn o dan adran 186 o Ddeddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal 

Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016 ("y Ddeddf"). 

Mae’r Ddeddf yn cyflwyno system newydd o reoleiddio gwasanaethau gofal a chymorth 

yng Nghymru, gan ddisodli’r un a sefydlwyd gan Ddeddf Safonau Gofal 2000 (“Deddf 

2000”) 

Mae Rhan 1 o'r Ddeddf yn disodli'r system gofrestru ar gyfer darparwyr gwasanaethau 

gofal cymdeithasol, a nodir yn Rhannau 1 a 2 o Ddeddf 2000, lle'r oedd sefydliadau ac 

asiantaethau wedi’u cofrestru. Roedd hyn yn gofyn am gofrestriad ar wahân ar gyfer 

pob lleoliad lle darperir gwasanaeth. 

Mae'r Ddeddf yn cymryd agwedd wahanol sy'n seiliedig ar wasanaeth. Rhaid i 

ddarparwr gofrestru gyda Gweinidogion Cymru er mwyn darparu unrhyw wasanaeth 

gofal a chymorth sy'n cael ei reoleiddio o dan y Ddeddf, a bydd y cofrestriad hwnnw'n 

cynnwys manylion yr holl leoliadau lle mae'r darparwr yn darparu'r gwasanaeth 

rheoleiddiedig. 

Cychwynnir Rhan 1 o'r Ddeddf ar 2 Ebrill 2018 mewn perthynas â'r gwasanaethau 

rheoleiddiedig a ganlyn: 

(a) gwasanaeth cartref gofal, 

(b) gwasanaeth llety diogel, 

(c) gwasanaeth canolfan breswyl i deuluoedd; a 

(ch) gwasanaeth cymorth cartref. 

Bydd sefydliadau ac asiantaethau sy'n darparu lleoliadau mabwysiadu, maethu ac 

oedolion yn parhau i fod yn destun cofrestru ac arolygu o dan Ddeddf 2000 hyd at 

gychwyn Rhan 1 o'r Ddeddf yn llawn. 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2



 

Mae Rheoliad 2 ac Atodlen 1 yn gwneud diwygiadau i is-ddeddfwriaeth o ganlyniad i'r 

cychwyn rhannol hwn. 

Mae Rheoliad 3 ac Atodlen 2 yn pennu'r is-ddeddfwriaeth a ddiddymir gan y 

Rheoliadau hyn.  

Deddf wreiddiol: Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016 

Fe’u gwnaed ar: 17 Ionawr 2018 

Fe’u gosodwyd ar: 19 Ionawr 2018 

Yn dod i rym ar: 2 Ebrill 2018 

SL(5)177 - Rheoliadau Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016 

(Diwygiadau Canlyniadol) 2018 

Gweithdrefn: Cadarnhaol 

Gwneir y Rheoliadau hyn o dan adran 186 o Ddeddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal 

Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016 ("y Ddeddf") sy'n galluogi Gweinidogion Cymru i wneud 

diwygiadau canlyniadol i ddeddfwriaeth sylfaenol lle mae'n briodol at ddibenion y 

Ddeddf. 

Mae'r Rheoliadau'n ymdrin â diwygiadau canlyniadol i ddeddfwriaeth sylfaenol sy'n 

deillio o gychwyn y darpariaethau yn Rhan 1 o'r Ddeddf sy'n ymwneud â rheoleiddio 

cartrefi gofal, gwasanaethau llety diogel, gwasanaethau canolfannau preswyl i 

deuluoedd a gwasanaethau cymorth cartref yng Nghymru. Mae'r rhain yn enghreifftiau 

o'r hyn y mae’r Ddeddf yn cyfeirio atynt fel "gwasanaethau rheoleiddiedig". 

Mae'r rhain i gyd yn wasanaethau sydd wedi'u rheoleiddio o dan Ran 2 o Ddeddf 

Safonau Gofal 2000 ("Deddf 2000"). Mae llawer o'r diwygiadau felly yn disodli 

cyfeiriadau at un o'r mathau o sefydliad neu asiantaeth a gafodd eu rheoleiddio o dan 

Ddeddf 2000, ac yn rhoi cyfeiriadau at y math priodol o "wasanaeth rheoleiddiedig" o 

dan y Ddeddf yn eu lle. 

Mae’r Rheoliadau hefyd yn cynnwys un diwygiad a wneir o dan adran 198 o Ddeddf 

Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) 2014 ("Deddf 2014"). Mae Rheoliad 52 

yn diwygio adran 86 o Ddeddf 2014 i ddileu geiriad sy'n awgrymu bod angen i lety a 

ddarperir, a gynhwysir neu a gynhelir gan Weinidogion Cymru ar gyfer plant sy'n 

derbyn gofal, o reidrwydd fod yn gartref plant. 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



 

Deddfau gwreiddiol: Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016 a 

Deddf Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) 2014: 

Fe’u gwnaed ar: heb ei nodi 

Fe’u gosodwyd ar: heb ei nodi 

Yn dod i rym ar: 2 Ebrill 2018 2017 

SL(5)179 - Rheoliadau Gofal Cymdeithasol Cymru (Pennu Gweithwyr Gofal 

Cymdeithasol) (Cofrestru) (Diwygio) 2018 

Gweithdrefn: Cadarnhaol 

Mae’r Rheoliadau hyn yn diwygio Rheoliadau Gofal Cymdeithasol Cymru (Pennu 

Gweithwyr Gofal Cymdeithasol) (Cofrestru) 2016  

Mae Adran 80 (1) (b) o Ddeddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 

2016 ("y Ddeddf") yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i Ofal Cymdeithasol Cymru gadw cofrestr o 

weithwyr gofal cymdeithasol o'r fath ddisgrifiad a bennir gan Weinidogion Cymru .   

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn pennu disgrifiad ychwanegol o weithwyr gofal cymdeithasol y 

mae'n rhaid i Ofal Cymdeithasol Cymru gadw cofrestr ohonynt, sef y rheiny sy'n cael eu 

cyflogi neu eu cynnwys gan wasanaeth cymorth cartref rheoleiddiedig i ddarparu gofal 

a chymorth i bersonau y cyfeirir atynt ym mharagraff 8 o Atodlen 1 i'r Ddeddf. 

Deddf wreiddiol: Deddf Rheoleiddio ac Arolygu Gofal Cymdeithasol (Cymru) 2016 

Fe’u gwnaed ar: heb ei nodi 

Fe’u gosodwyd ar: heb ei nodi 

Yn dod i rym ar: 2 Ebrill 2018 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



Draft Regulations laid before Parliament and the National Assembly for Wales under section 2(8) 

and (9)(d) and (e) of the Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999, for approval by resolution of 
each House of Parliament and of the Assembly. 

D R A F T  S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2018 No. 000 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, ENGLAND AND 

WALES 

WASTE, ENGLAND AND WALES 

The Waste Enforcement (England and Wales) Regulations 2018 

Made - - - - *** 

Coming into force in accordance with regulation 1(2) and (3) 

The Secretary of State, in relation to England, and the Welsh Ministers, in relation to Wales, make 

these Regulations in exercise of the powers conferred by section 2(1), (2) and (3) of, and 

paragraph 20 of Schedule 1 to, the Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 (“the Act”)(a). 

The Secretary of State and the Welsh Ministers have, in accordance with section 2(4) of the Act, 

consulted— 

(a) the Environment Agency, 

(b) the Natural Resources Body for Wales, 

(c) such bodies or persons appearing to them to be representative of the interests of local 

government, industry, agriculture and small businesses as they consider appropriate, and 

(d) such other bodies or persons as they consider appropriate. 

A draft of this instrument has been approved by a resolution of each House of Parliament and by 

the National Assembly for Wales pursuant to section 2(8) and (9)(d) and (e) of the Act(b). 

Citation, commencement and extent 

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Waste Enforcement (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2018. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1999 c. 24; section 2 was amended by the Water Act 2014 (c. 21), section 62(13) and S.I. 2013/755 (W. 90). Functions of 

the Secretary of State under or in relation to section 2, so far as exercisable in relation to Wales, were transferred to the 
National Assembly for Wales, except in relation to offshore oil and gas exploration and exploitation, by the National 
Assembly for Wales (Transfer of Functions) Order 2005 (S.I. 2005/1958), article 3(1). Functions of the National Assembly 
for Wales were transferred to the Welsh Ministers by the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c. 32), Schedule 11, paragraph 
30. Paragraph 20 of Schedule 1 was amended by S.I. 2011/1043. 

(b) By virtue of paragraph 33(2) and (6)(a) of Schedule 11 to the Government of Wales Act 2006, section 2(8) has effect in 
relation to the exercise of the powers conferred by section 2 of the Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 by the Welsh 
Ministers as if the reference to each House of Parliament included a reference to the Assembly. 

Tudalen y pecyn 4

Eitem 3.1



 2 

(2) Subject to paragraph (3), these Regulations come into force 21 days after the day on which 

they are made. 

(3) Regulations 2 and 4(2) and (3) come into force 2 months after the day on which these 

Regulations are made. 

(4) These Regulations extend to England and Wales only. 

Amendment of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 

2. The Environmental Protection Act 1990(a) is amended as set out in Schedule 1. 

Amendment of the Environment Act 1995 

3. The Environment Act 1995(b) is amended as set out in Schedule 2. 

Transitional provision 

4.—(1) Until regulation 2 comes into force, section 109D of the Environment Act 1995, as 

inserted by Schedule 2 to these Regulations, has effect as if the references in that section to 

sections 59ZB and 59ZC of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 were omitted. 

(2) The amendments made by regulation 2 do not apply where the deposit in or on any land of 

controlled waste or extractive waste, which is subsequently kept or disposed of in contravention of 

section 33(1) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990(c) or regulation 12 of the Environmental 

Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2016(d), occurs before the coming into force of 

regulation 2. 

(3) In paragraph (2), “controlled waste” and “extractive waste” have the same meaning as in the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990(e). 

 

 Name 

 Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 

Date Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

 

 Name 

 Minister for Environment 

 Under authority of the Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs, 

Date one of the Welsh Ministers 

 SCHEDULE 1 Regulation 2 

Amendment of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 

1. The Environmental Protection Act 1990 is amended as follows. 

2. After section 59ZA(f) insert— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1990 c. 43. 
(b) 1995 c. 25. 
(c) Section 33(1) was amended by S.I. 2007/3538 and 2009/1799. 
(d) S.I. 2016/1154. 
(e) The definition of “controlled waste” is given in section 75(4). Section 29(13) gives “extractive waste” the same meaning as 

in S.I. 2016/1154 (see regulation 2). 
(f) Section 59ZA was inserted by the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 (c. 16), section 50(2).  

Tudalen y pecyn 5



 3 

“Powers to require removal of waste unlawfully kept or disposed of: England and 

Wales 

59ZB.—(1) Subsection (2) applies if any controlled waste or extractive waste is kept or 

disposed of in or on any land in the area of an authority in contravention of section 33(1) or 

regulation 12 of the Environmental Permitting Regulations. 

(2) The authority may, by notice served on the occupier, require the occupier to do one or 

both of the following— 

(a) remove the waste from the land within a specified period of not less than 21 days 

beginning with the service of the notice; 

(b) take within such a period specified steps with a view to eliminating or reducing the 

consequences of the keeping or disposal of the waste. 

(3) A person on whom a requirement is imposed under subsection (2) may, within 21 

days beginning with the service of the notice, appeal against the requirement to a 

magistrates’ court. 

(4) On any appeal under subsection (3), the court must quash the requirement if it is 

satisfied that— 

(a) the appellant did not keep or dispose of, or knowingly cause or knowingly permit 

the keeping or disposal of, the waste, or 

(b) there is a material defect in the notice, 

and in any other case may modify the requirement or dismiss the appeal. 

(5) Where a person appeals against a requirement imposed under subsection (2), the 

requirement has no effect pending the determination of the appeal; and where the court 

modifies the requirement or dismisses the appeal it may extend the period specified in the 

notice. 

(6) If a person on whom a requirement imposed under subsection (2) fails, without 

reasonable excuse, to comply with the requirement, that person is liable, on summary 

conviction, to a fine. 

(7) Where a person on whom a requirement has been imposed under subsection (2) by an 

authority fails to comply with the requirement, the authority may do what that person was 

required to do and may recover from that person any expenses reasonably incurred by the 

authority in doing it. 

(8) If it appears to an authority that controlled waste or extractive waste has been kept or 

disposed of in or on any land in the authority’s area in contravention of section 33(1) or 

regulation 12 of the Environmental Permitting Regulations, and that— 

(a) in order to remove or prevent pollution of land, water or air or harm to human 

health, it is necessary that the waste be forthwith removed, or that steps are taken 

to eliminate or reduce the consequences of the keeping or disposal, or both, 

(b) there is no occupier of the land or the occupier cannot be found without the 

authority incurring unreasonable expense, or 

(c) the occupier did not keep or dispose of, or knowingly cause or knowingly permit 

the keeping or disposal of, the waste, 

the authority may remove the waste from the land, or take steps to eliminate or reduce the 

consequences of the keeping or disposal of the waste, or both. 

(9) Where an authority exercises any of the powers conferred on it by subsection (8), it is 

entitled to recover the cost incurred by it in removing the waste or taking the steps or both, 

and in disposing of the waste— 

(a) in a case falling within subsection (8)(a), from the occupier of the land, unless the 

occupier proves that the occupier did not keep or dispose of, or knowingly cause or 

knowingly permit the keeping or disposal of, the waste, 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



 4 

(b) in any case, from any person who kept or disposed of, or knowingly caused or 

knowingly permitted the keeping or disposal of, the waste, 

except such of the cost as the occupier or that person shows was incurred unnecessarily. 

(10) An authority may not recover costs under subsection (9) if a compensation order has 

been made under section 130 of the Powers of Criminal Courts (Sentencing) Act 2000(a) in 

favour of the authority in respect of any part of those costs. 

(11) Subsection (10) does not apply if the compensation order is set aside on appeal. 

(12) Any waste removed by an authority under subsection (8) belongs to that authority 

and may be dealt with accordingly. 

(13) Subsections (2) and (8) do not apply in relation to household waste from a domestic 

property which is kept or disposed of within the curtilage of that property by a person other 

than an establishment or undertaking. 

(14) In this section and section 59ZC, “authority” means— 

(a) a waste regulation authority in England or Wales, or 

(b) a waste collection authority in England or Wales. 

Section 59ZB: supplementary power in relation to owner of land 

59ZC.—(1) Where the grounds in subsection (2) or (3) are met, an authority may, by 

notice served on the owner of any land in its area, require the owner to comply with one or 

both of the requirements mentioned in section 59ZB(2)(a) or (b). 

(2) The grounds in this subsection are that it appears to the authority that controlled waste 

or extractive waste has been kept or disposed of in or on the land in contravention of 

section 33(1) or regulation 12 of the Environmental Permitting Regulations, and— 

(a) there is no occupier of the land, or 

(b) the occupier cannot be found without the authority incurring unreasonable 

expense. 

(3) The grounds in this subsection are that— 

(a) the authority has served a notice under section 59ZB(2) imposing a requirement on 

the occupier of the land, 

(b) the occupier of the land is not the same person as the owner of the land, and 

(c) either— 

 (i) the occupier has failed to comply with the requirement mentioned in 

paragraph (a) within the period specified in the notice, or 

 (ii) the requirement mentioned in paragraph (a) has been quashed on the ground 

specified in section 59ZB(4)(a). 

(4) Section 59ZB(3) to (7) apply in relation to a requirement imposed under this section 

on the owner of the land as they apply in relation to a requirement imposed under that 

section on the occupier of land but as if in section 59ZB(4) there were inserted after 

paragraph (a)— 

“(aa) in order to comply with the requirement the appellant would be required 

to enter the land unlawfully, or”. 

(6) Subsection (1) does not apply in relation to household waste from a domestic property 

which is kept or disposed of within the curtilage of that property by a person other than an 

establishment or undertaking. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 2000 c. 6; section 130 was amended by the Fraud Act 2006 (c. 35), Schedule 1, paragraph 29, the Legal Aid, Sentencing 

and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012 (c. 10), section 63(1), and the Criminal Justice and Courts Act 2015 (c. 2), Schedule 
5, paragraph 6. 

Tudalen y pecyn 7



 5 

(7) In this section, “owner” has the meaning given by section 78A(9)(a).”. 

3. In section 59A (directions in relation to exercise of powers under section 59)(b)— 

(a) in the heading, after “section 59” insert “, 59ZA, 59ZB or 59ZC”; 

(b) in subsections (1) and (3), after “section 59” insert “, 59ZA, 59ZB or 59ZC”. 

4. In section 71 (obtaining of information from persons and authorities)(c), in subsection (4)(a), 

after “section 59” insert “, 59ZA, 59ZB or 59ZC”. 

5. In section 78YB (interaction of Part 2A with other enactments)(d), in subsection (3)— 

(a) after “section 59” insert “, section 59ZA(1), 59ZB(1) or (8) or 59ZC(1)”; 

(b) after “deposit” in each place it occurs insert “, keeping or disposal”; 

(c) for “that section” substitute “section 59, 59ZA, 59ZB or 59ZC (as the case may be)”. 

 SCHEDULE 2 Regulation 3 

Amendment of the Environment Act 1995 

1. The Environment Act 1995 is amended as follows. 

2. For the italic heading before section 108 substitute “Enforcement”. 

3. After section 109 insert— 

“Power to issue restriction notices: England and Wales 

109A.—(1) An authorised person may issue a restriction notice in relation to premises 

where there is, or was, a regulated facility or an exempt facility if the person is satisfied that 

the conditions in subsection (2) are met. 

(2) The conditions are that— 

(a) there is a risk of serious pollution to the environment or serious harm to human 

health which is a result of the treatment, keeping, deposit or disposal of waste in or 

on the premises, and 

(b) the notice is necessary to prevent that risk from continuing. 

(3) A restriction notice is a notice prohibiting access to, and the importation of waste into, 

the premises or a specified part of the premises. 

(4) But a restriction notice does not prohibit access to the premises, or the specified part 

of the premises, by the occupier or the owner. 

(5) A restriction notice has effect for a period specified in the notice, which may not 

exceed 72 hours. 

(6) Where a restriction notice is issued, the appropriate agency may do anything 

necessary to secure the premises against access in contravention of the notice. 

(7) A restriction notice may include provision for— 

(a) persons, or a description of persons, to whom the prohibition in subsection (3) does 

not apply; 

(b) times at which the prohibition in subsection (3) does not apply; 

(c) circumstances in which the prohibition in subsection (3) does not apply. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Section 78A was inserted by the Environment Act 1995, section 57. 
(b) Section 59A was inserted by the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 (c. 38), section 55(4). 
(c) Section 71(4) was inserted by the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003, section 55(5). 
(d) Section 78YB was inserted by the Environment Act 1995, section 57. 

Tudalen y pecyn 8



 6 

(8) Provision included in accordance with subsection (7) may be unconditional or subject 

to specified conditions. 

(9) A restriction notice must— 

(a) identify the premises, or part of the premises, to which the notice applies; 

(b) explain the effect of the notice; 

(c) state that failure to comply with the notice is an offence; 

(d) state the penalties applicable to a person guilty of an offence; 

(e) state that a restriction order will be applied for under section 109D; 

(f) state that notice will be given of when and where the application for a restriction 

order will be heard; 

(g) explain the effect of a restriction order. 

(10) Before issuing a restriction notice, the appropriate agency must make reasonable 

efforts— 

(a) to inform the occupier and the owner of the premises that the notice is going to be 

issued; 

(b) to consult the occupier and the owner of the premises on the arrangements for 

access to the premises, or to the particular part of the premises, by persons acting 

on behalf of the occupier or the owner for any purpose, including— 

 (i) the purpose of maintaining machinery and apparatus; 

 (ii) the purpose of securing the premises. 

Cancellation or variation of restriction notices 

109B. Where a restriction notice is in force and the authorised person is no longer 

satisfied that the conditions in section 109A(2) are met— 

(a) as regards the premises as a whole, the authorised person must issue a notice 

cancelling the restriction notice (a “cancellation notice”); 

(b) as regards a particular part of the premises, the authorised person must issue a 

notice varying the restriction notice so that it does not apply to that part of the 

premises (a “variation notice”). 

Service of restriction notices etc. 

109C.—(1) A restriction notice, a cancellation notice or a variation notice must be served 

by an authorised person. 

(2) The authorised person must make reasonable efforts to— 

(a) fix a copy of the notice to each normal means of access to the premises; 

(b) give a copy of the notice to the occupier and the owner of the premises; 

(c) give a copy of the notice to the occupier and the owner of any other premises to 

which the authorised person believes access will be impeded by the restriction 

notice. 

(3) In subsection (1), “cancellation notice” and “variation notice” have the meanings 

given by section 109B. 

Power of court to make restriction orders: England and Wales 

109D.—(1) An application to a magistrates’ court for a restriction order— 

(a) must be made by the appropriate agency when it has issued a restriction notice 

(unless the notice has been cancelled); 

(b) may otherwise be made by the appropriate agency at any time. 

Tudalen y pecyn 9



 7 

(2) The application must be heard by the magistrates’ court— 

(a) where subsection (1)(a) applies, not later than 72 hours after service of the 

restriction notice; 

(b) where subsection (1)(b) applies, not later than 7 days after the application is made. 

(3) Where an application is made under subsection (1), the appropriate agency must serve 

a notice stating the date, time and place of the hearing of the application on— 

(a) the occupier and the owner of the premises; 

(b) the occupier and the owner of any other premises to which the appropriate agency 

believes access will be impeded if a restriction order is made. 

(4) The court may make a restriction order in relation to premises where there is, or was, 

a regulated facility or an exempt facility if the court is satisfied that the conditions in 

subsection (5) or (6) are met. 

(5) The conditions are that— 

(a) there is a risk of serious pollution to the environment or serious harm to human 

health which is a result of the treatment, keeping, deposit or disposal of waste in or 

on the premises, and 

(b) the order is necessary to prevent that risk from continuing. 

(6) The conditions are that— 

(a) in relation to the treatment, keeping, deposit or disposal of waste in or on the 

premises, a person has— 

 (i) contravened section 33(1) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, 

 (ii) contravened regulation 12(1) of the Environmental Permitting Regulations or 

knowingly caused or knowingly permitted the contravention of regulation 

12(1)(a) of those Regulations, 

 (iii) contravened or failed to comply with an environmental permit condition, or 

 (iv) failed to comply with the requirements of an enforcement notice, a landfill 

closure notice, a mining waste facility closure notice, a suspension notice, or a 

notice served under section 59, 59ZA, 59ZB or 59ZC of the Environmental 

Protection Act 1990, 

(b) the conduct referred to in paragraph (a) has caused, is causing or has failed to 

prevent from continuing— 

 (i) pollution to the environment, or 

 (ii) harm to human health, and 

(c) the order is necessary to prevent that pollution or harm from continuing. 

(7) A restriction order is an order prohibiting access to, and the importation of waste into, 

the premises or a specified part of the premises. 

(8) A restriction order has effect for a period specified in the order, which may not exceed 

6 months. 

(9) A restriction order may include provision for— 

(a) persons, or a description of persons, to whom the prohibition in subsection (7) does 

not apply; 

(b) times at which the prohibition in subsection (7) does not apply; 

(c) circumstances in which the prohibition in subsection (7) does not apply. 

(10) Provision included in accordance with subsection (9) may be unconditional or 

subject to specified conditions. 

(11) A restriction order may include provision about access to other premises where that 

access could otherwise be impeded by the order. 

(12) A restriction order must— 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



 8 

(a) identify the premises, or part of the premises, to which the order applies; 

(b) explain the effect of the order; 

(c) state that failure to comply with the order is an offence; 

(d) state that the removal of a copy of a restriction order fixed to a normal means of 

access to the premises is an offence; 

(e) state the penalties applicable to a person guilty of an offence. 

(13) The restriction notice referred to in subsection (1)(a) ceases to have effect— 

(a) on the making of a restriction order, or 

(b) where the court decides not to make a restriction order, on the making of that 

decision, unless the court makes an order in accordance with section 109E(4). 

(14) In subsection (6)(a)(iii) and (iv), “enforcement notice”, “environmental permit 

condition”, “landfill closure notice”, “mining waste facility closure notice” and “suspension 

notice” have the meanings given in regulation 2(1) of the Environmental Permitting 

Regulations. 

Temporary orders 

109E.—(1) This section applies where an application has been made to a magistrates’ 

court under section 109D(1)(a) for a restriction order. 

(2) The court may adjourn the hearing of the application for a period of not more than 14 

days to enable— 

(a) the appropriate agency to show why a restriction order should be made; 

(b) the occupier or the owner of the premises to show why a restriction order should 

not be made. 

(3) If the court adjourns the hearing, the restriction notice continues in force until the 

court has determined the application. 

(4) If the court does not make a restriction order it may nevertheless order that the 

restriction notice continues in force for a specified further period of not more than 72 hours 

if it is satisfied that— 

(a) there is a risk of serious pollution to the environment or serious harm to human 

health which is a result of the treatment, keeping, deposit or disposal of waste in or 

on the premises, and 

(b) the notice is necessary to prevent that risk from continuing. 

Extension of restriction orders 

109F.—(1) At any time before the expiry of a restriction order, the appropriate agency 

may apply to a justice of the peace, by complaint, for an extension (or further extension) of 

the period for which the order is in force. 

(2) Where an application is made under this section, the justice of the peace may issue a 

summons directed to one or both of the occupier and the owner of the premises, requiring 

the person to appear before the magistrates’ court to respond to the application. 

(3) If a summons is issued under subsection (2), a notice stating the date, time and place 

of the hearing of the application must be served on the persons to whom the summons is 

directed. 

(4) The court may make an order extending (or further extending) the period of the 

restriction order by a period not exceeding 6 months where satisfied that the conditions in 

section 109D(5) or (6) are met. 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



 9 

Variation or discharge of restriction orders 

109G.—(1) At any time before the expiry of a restriction order, an application may be 

made to a justice of the peace, by complaint, for the order to be varied or discharged. 

(2) Those entitled to make an application under this section are— 

(a) the appropriate agency that applied for the restriction order; 

(b) the occupier of the premises subject to the order; 

(c) the owner of the premises subject to the order. 

(3) Where the appropriate agency makes an application under this section, the justice of 

the peace may issue a summons directed to one or both of the occupier and the owner of the 

premises, requiring the person to appear before the magistrates’ court to respond to the 

application. 

(4) Where the occupier or the owner of the premises makes an application under this 

section, the justice of the peace must— 

(a) issue a summons directed to the appropriate agency that applied for the restriction 

order requiring it to appear before the magistrates’ court to respond to the 

application, or 

(b) dismiss the application. 

(5) If a summons is issued under subsection (3) or (4), a notice stating the date, time and 

place of the hearing of the application must be served on— 

(a) the appropriate agency that applied for the restriction order (other than where the 

agency is the complainant); 

(b) the occupier or the owner of the premises (other than the complainant). 

(6) The magistrates’ court may make an order varying or discharging the restriction order 

if it is no longer satisfied that the conditions in section 109D(5) or (6) are met in respect of 

all or part of the premises (or the part of the premises) to which the restriction order applies. 

Enforcement of restriction orders 

109H.—(1) The appropriate agency must make reasonable efforts to fix a copy of the 

restriction order to each normal means of access to the premises. 

(2) Where a restriction order has been made, an authorised person may do anything 

necessary to secure the premises against access in contravention of the order. 

Appeals against decisions on restriction orders 

109I.—(1) The occupier or the owner of the premises may appeal against— 

(a) a decision to make or extend a restriction order; 

(b) a decision made under section 109G in relation to an application to vary or 

discharge a restriction order. 

(2) The appropriate agency may appeal against— 

(a) a decision not to order the continuation in force of a restriction notice (under 

section 109E); 

(b) a decision not to make a restriction order; 

(c) a decision not to extend a restriction order; 

(d) a decision made in relation to an application to vary or discharge a restriction order 

(under section 109G). 

(3) An appeal under this section is to the Crown Court. 

(4) An appeal under this section must be made within 21 days beginning with the date of 

the decision to which it relates. 

Tudalen y pecyn 12



 10 

(5) On an appeal under this section the Crown Court may make whatever order it thinks 

appropriate. 

(6) Pending the determination of an appeal under this section, the decision being appealed 

remains in force. 

Access to other premises 

109J.—(1) Where— 

(a) access to premises is prohibited or restricted by an order under section 109D, 

109E, 109F, 109G or 109I, and 

(b) there are other premises to which access is impeded by that order, 

an occupier or owner of those other premises may apply to the appropriate court for an 

order under this section. 

(2) The appropriate court is— 

(a) the magistrates’ court, in the case of an order under section 109D, 109E, 109F or 

109G; 

(b) the Crown Court, in the case of an order under section 109I. 

(3) Notice of an application under this section must be given to— 

(a) the appropriate agency that applied for the restriction order; 

(b) the occupier and the owner of the premises subject to the order. 

(4) On an application under this section the court may make whatever order it thinks 

appropriate in relation to access to the other premises, whether or not provision has been 

made under section 109D(11). 

Recovery of costs 

109K.—(1) An appropriate agency that incurs expenditure for the purpose of securing 

premises in respect of which a restriction notice was issued is entitled to recover that 

expenditure from the occupier or the owner of the premises, except such of that expenditure 

as the occupier or the owner shows was incurred unnecessarily. 

(2) An appropriate agency that incurs expenditure for the purpose of securing premises in 

respect of which a restriction order is in force may apply to the court that made the 

restriction order for an order under subsection (3). 

(3) On an application under this section, the court may make whatever order it thinks 

appropriate for the reimbursement (in full or in part) by the occupier or the owner of the 

premises of— 

(a) the expenditure mentioned in subsection (2); 

(b) any expenditure incurred by the appropriate agency for the purpose of securing the 

premises in respect of which a restriction notice (including a notice continued in 

force under section 109E) was issued, except such of that expenditure as has been 

recovered in accordance with subsection (1). 

(4) An application for an order under this section may not be heard unless it is made 

within 3 months beginning with the day on which the restriction order ceases to have effect. 

(5) An order under this section may be made only against a person who has been served 

with the application for the order. 

Exemption from liability 

109L.—(1) The appropriate agency is not liable for damages arising out of anything done 

or omitted to be done by the appropriate agency in the exercise or purported exercise of a 

power under sections 109A to 109D, 109F to 109I and 109K in proceedings for— 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



 11 

(a) judicial review, or 

(b) the tort of negligence or misfeasance in public office. 

(2) Subsection (1) does not apply to an act or omission shown to have been in bad faith. 

(3) Subsection (1) does not apply so as to prevent an award of damages made in respect 

of an act or omission on the ground that the act or omission was unlawful by virtue of 

section 6(1) of the Human Rights Act 1998(a). 

(4) This section does not affect any other exemption from liability (whether at common 

law or otherwise). 

Compensation 

109M.—(1) Where the occupier or the owner of any premises to which access was 

impeded by a restriction notice or order (other than the premises which is subject to a 

restriction notice or order) claims to have incurred financial loss in consequence of that 

notice or order, that person may apply to the appropriate court for compensation. 

(2) The appropriate court is— 

(a) the magistrates’ court (except where paragraph (b) applies); 

(b) the Crown Court, in the case of a restriction order that was made or extended by an 

order of that Court on an appeal under section 109I. 

(3) An application under this section may not be heard unless it is made within 3 months 

beginning with whichever of the following is applicable— 

(a) the day on which the restriction notice was cancelled under section 109B; 

(b) the day on which a restriction order was refused; 

(c) the day on which the restriction order ceased to have effect. 

(4) For the purposes of subsection (3)(b) the day on which a restriction order was refused 

is— 

(a) the day on which the magistrates’ court decided not to make a restriction order 

(except where paragraph (b) applies); 

(b) the day on which the Crown Court dismissed an appeal against a decision not to 

make a restriction order. 

(5) On an application under this section the court may order the payment of compensation 

by the appropriate agency if it is satisfied— 

(a) that the applicant has incurred financial loss in consequence of the notice or order, 

and 

(b) that having regard to all the circumstances it is appropriate to order payment of 

compensation in respect of that loss. 

Interpretation 

109N.—(1) In sections 109A to 109M and this section— 

“appropriate agency” means the Agency or the Natural Resources Body for Wales; 

“authorised person” means a person who is authorised by the appropriate agency under 

section 108; 

“the Environmental Permitting Regulations” means the Environmental Permitting 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2016 (S.I. 2016/1154); 

“exempt facility” has the meaning given in regulation 5 of the Environmental 

Permitting Regulations; 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 1998 c. 42. 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



 12 

“occupier”, in relation to premises, includes a person who habitually lives on the 

premises; 

“owner”, in relation to premises consisting of land, means a person (other than a 

mortgagee not in possession) who, whether in his own right or as trustee for any other 

person, is entitled to receive the rack rent of the land, or, where the land is not let at a 

rack rent, would be so entitled if it were so let; 

“premises” means premises in England or Wales, and includes any land, vehicle, vessel 

or mobile plant; 

“regulated facility” has the meaning given in regulation 8 of the Environmental 

Permitting Regulations; 

“restriction notice” has the meaning given by section 109A(3); 

“restriction order” has the meaning given by section 109D(7); 

“waste” has the same meaning as in section 75 of the Environmental Protection Act 

1990(a). 

(2) In calculating for the purposes of sections 109A(5), 109D(2) and 109E(4) when a 

period of 72 hours or 7 days ends, the following days are to be disregarded— 

(a) Good Friday; 

(b) Christmas Day; 

(c) a day which is a bank holiday in England and Wales under the Banking and 

Financial Dealings Act 1971(b).”. 

4. In section 110 (offences)— 

(a) after subsection (3) insert— 

“(3A) It is an offence for a person to contravene, without reasonable excuse, a restriction 

notice issued under section 109A (including a notice continued in force under section 

109E). 

(3B) It is an offence for a person to contravene, without reasonable excuse, a restriction 

order made under section 109D, 109F, 109G or 109I. 

(3C) It is an offence for a person to remove, without reasonable excuse, a copy of a 

restriction order fixed to a normal means of access to premises under section 109H(1).”; 

(b) after subsection (5) insert— 

“(5D) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (3A) is liable on summary 

conviction to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding 51 weeks, or to both. 

(5E) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (3B) is liable— 

(a) on summary conviction, to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding 12 

months, or to both; 

(b) on conviction on indictment, to a fine or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 

two years, or to both. 

(5F) A person guilty of an offence under subsection (3C) is liable on summary conviction 

to a fine. 

(5G) In relation to an offence committed before the coming into force of section 281(5) of 

the Criminal Justice Act 2003(c), the reference in subsection (5D) to 51 weeks is to be read 

as a reference to 6 months. 

(5H) In relation to an offence committed before the coming into force of section 154(1) of 

the Criminal Justice Act 2003, the reference in subsection (5E)(a) to 12 months is to be read 

as a reference to 6 months.”. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Section 75(2) was substituted by S.I. 2011/988. 
(b) 1971 c. 80. 
(c) 2003 c. 44. 

Tudalen y pecyn 15



 13 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations amend the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (c. 43) and the Environment Act 

1995 (c. 25) for England and Wales in connection with Directive 2008/98/EC of the European 

Parliament and of the Council on waste (OJ L 312 22.11.2008, p. 3). 

Regulation 2 amends the Environmental Protection Act 1990 by inserting sections 59ZB and 

59ZC. These sections give a waste regulation authority or waste collection authority (defined 

respectively in section 30(1) and (3) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990) the power to issue 

a notice in respect of waste which is unlawfully kept or disposed of in or on land within the 

authority’s area. A notice may be issued on the occupier of the land or (in the circumstances in 

section 59ZC(2) to (4)) on the owner of the land, and may include requirements to remove waste 

and take steps (to be specified in the notice) to eliminate or reduce the consequences of the 

unlawful keeping or disposal. 

A person who fails without reasonable excuse to comply with a requirement is guilty of an offence 

(sections 59ZB(6) and 59ZC(5)). A requirement may be appealed. A waste regulation authority or 

waste collection authority may also take the required action and recover the costs of doing so from 

the occupier or owner of the land or from any other person who knowingly caused or permitted the 

keeping or disposal of the waste (section 59ZB(7) to (9)). 

Regulation 3 amends the Environment Act 1995 by inserting sections 109A to 109N. These 

sections give the Environment Agency and the Natural Resources Body for Wales (“the 

regulators”) the power to issue a “restriction notice” and to apply to the courts for a “restriction 

order”. A restriction notice (section 109A) is a notice prohibiting access and the importation of 

waste to premises for a period specified in the notice of no more than 72 hours. This can only be 

issued where a person authorised by the regulator is satisfied in accordance with section 109A(2). 

A restriction order (section 109D) is an order made by the courts which prohibits access and the 

importation of waste to the premises for a period specified in the order, which may not exceed 6 

months. It can be extended, varied or discharged (sections 109F and 109G). A decision of the 

courts may be appealed (section 109L). 

A regulator may apply to the courts for reimbursement of expenditure for the purpose of securing 

premises in respect of which a restriction order is in force (section 109K). On application from an 

occupier or the owner of other premises to which access was impeded by a restriction notice or 

restriction order, a court may order the regulator to pay compensation to that person in respect of 

financial loss incurred in consequence of the notice or order. The court may order such 

compensation to be paid where it considers that it is appropriate to do so (section 109M). 

Regulation 4 contains transitional provision in respect of the amendments made by regulation 2. 

An impact assessment has not been produced for this instrument in relation to England as no, or 

no significant, impact on the private, voluntary or public sector is foreseen. 

The Welsh Ministers’ Code of Practice on the carrying out of Regulatory Impact Assessments was 

considered in relation to these Regulations. As result a regulatory impact assessment has been 

prepared as to the likely costs and benefits of complying with these Regulations in relation to 

Wales. A copy can be obtained from the Waste Regulation Policy Team, Department for 

Environment and Rural Affairs, Welsh Government, Cathays Park, Cardiff, CF10 3NQ and is 

published on www.gov.wales. 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



 
1 

 

Explanatory Memorandum to The Waste Enforcement (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2018   
 
This Explanatory Memorandum has been prepared by the Department for 
Environment and Rural Affairs and is laid before the National Assembly for 
Wales in conjunction with the above subordinate legislation and in accordance 
with Standing Order 27.1 
 
Minister’s Declaration 
 
In my view, this Explanatory Memorandum gives a fair and reasonable view of 
the expected impact of The Waste Enforcement (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2018. I am satisfied that the benefits justify the likely costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
Hannah Blythyn AM 
Minister for Environment 
25 January 2018 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



 
2 

 

1. Description 

 
This instrument amends two Acts of Parliaments to provide powers for 
regulators to tackle illegal activity in the waste sector which include sites 
permitted under the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2016 (“EPR”) or which are exempt from the requirement to have 
a permit.  
 
The Environment Act 1995 (“EA 1995”) is amended to insert new sections 
109A to 109N to give Natural Resources Wales (NRW) the ability to 
prohibit/restrict access to permitted and illegal waste sites by physical means 
and to secure premises against access. These powers may be exercised 
either to prevent a risk of serious pollution to the environment or serious harm 
to human health or where an offence has been committed in relation to the 
treatment, keeping, deposit or disposal of waste and pollution has been 
caused as a result. NRW will be able to restrict access to premises and 
importation of waste for up to 72 hours by issuing a restriction notice. Further 
access to premises and the importation of waste can be restricted for up to 6 
months on application by NRW to the Court for a restriction order. The Order 
can be extended, varied or discharged by the Court. A decision of the court 
may be appealed. The new provisions supplement existing powers in section 
108 of the Act. 
 
The Environmental Protection Act 1990 (“EPA 1990”) is amended to expand 
powers of NRW (as the Welsh waste regulation authority) and local authorities 
(as the Welsh waste collection authorities) to issue a notice on occupiers or 
owners of land, requiring them to undertake specified action on their land in 
relation to waste unlawfully kept or unlawfully disposed of, including its 
removal. The instrument inserts new sections 59ZB and 59ZC into the EA 
1990 which supplement the existing powers in sections 59 and 59ZA of that 
Act. The new powers will come into force two months after the regulations are 
made to give occupiers and owners time to become aware and understand 
the changes. A transitional provision has been inserted for the new powers to 
apply only to waste unlawfully kept or disposed of, where the deposit occurred 
after the coming into force date.  

 
2. Matters of special interest to the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs 
Committee 
 
This instrument makes amendments to two existing UK Acts of Parliament 
and is being made on a composite basis by the Welsh Ministers (in relation to 
Wales) and by the Secretary of State (in relation to England). As this 
composite instrument is subject to approval by the National Assembly for 
Wales and by the UK Parliament, it is not considered reasonably practicable 
for this instrument to be made or laid bilingually. 
 
There is no difference in policy on these proposals between England and 
Wales. Both the EPA 1990 and the EA 1995 are used by industry operating 
across the border.  

Tudalen y pecyn 18



 
3 

 

3. Legislative background 

 
The Waste Enforcement (England and Wales) Regulations 2018 make 
changes in connection with Directive 2008/98/EC of the European Parliament 
and of the Council on waste (OJ L 312 22.11.2008, p. 3) (the “Waste 
Framework Directive”). The Welsh Ministers powers to make these 
Regulations are conferred by section 2(1), (2) and (3) of, and paragraph 
20(1)(b) of Schedule 1 to, the Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 (“the 
1999 Act”).  
 
The relevant functions of the Secretary of State under or in relation to section 
2 of the 1999 Act, so far as exercisable in relation to Wales, were transferred 
to the National Assembly for Wales by the National Assembly for Wales 
(Transfer of Functions) Order 2005 (S.I.2005/1958), article 3(1). The functions 
of the National Assembly for Wales were transferred to the Welsh Ministers by 
the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c. 32), Schedule 11, paragraph 30.  
 
Section 2(1) of the 1999 Act provides that regulations may be made for any of 
the purposes listed in Part 1 of Schedule 1 of that Act. Paragraph 20(1)(b) of 
Schedule provides for provision that corresponds or is similar to any provision 
made or capable of being made under section 2(2) of the European 
Communities Act 1972 in connection with one of the relevant directives. The 
Waste Framework Directive has been designated as a relevant directive 
pursuant to paragraph 20(2)(c) of Schedule 1 to the 1999 Act (see The 
Pollution Prevention and Control (Designation of Waste Directive) (England 
and Wales) Order 2016 (SI No 2016/398)). 
 
This instrument follows the affirmative resolution procedure.  

4. Purpose & intended effect of the legislation 

The introduction of the Waste Framework Directive (2008/98/EC) and the 
Landfill Directive (1999/31/EC) has radically changed the way we manage our 
waste. Managing waste in accordance with the waste hierarchy and diverting 
waste from landfill has brought environmental and economic benefits but it 
means we need more sites to sort, store and treat waste for recycling and 
recovery. Waste sites who operate responsibly under a permit or exemption 
play a critical role in managing waste safely under controlled conditions.  

Most of the waste industry operates responsibly but there is a small part of the 
industry that fails to meet the required standards or operates outside the law. 
These operators either fail to meet the required standards of their 
permit/exemptions or operate illegally with no permit/exemption in place. 
These sites can cause pollution to the environment and endanger human 
health. They pose a risk of fire, water pollution and cause other issues such 
as odour, litter and fly infestations which affect surrounding communities. 
Those responsible often leave public bodies and owners of land to clear up 
the mess and deal with the consequences. 

The reputable waste management industry provides a key service to the 
Welsh economy. Making the economy more resource efficient and low carbon 
is crucial in developing a circular economy in Wales where increased 

Tudalen y pecyn 19



 
4 

 

recycling helps reduce the environmental impacts of production and 
consumption. The Welsh Government recognises the importance of 
developing a circular economy underpinned by a high performing waste 
industry. A well operated and regulated industry is crucial to prevent leakage 
of resources from the economy and in doing so, provide a level playing field to 
give legitimate businesses the confidence to invest in resource efficiency 
infrastructure and new technologies.  
 
It has been estimated that the costs of illegal waste sites, waste fires, 
breaches of permits/exemptions and the misclassification of waste cost the 
Welsh economy between £15 and £32 million1 in 2015-16.  
 
The proposed changes to our laws will help NRW tackle waste crime. 
Currently, there are no powers to enable the regulators to physically restrict 
access to waste sites to prevent further waste entering the sites. The new 
power to secure premises and prohibit access will help prevent a risk of 
serious pollution or stop pollution from continuing by prohibiting access to 
prevent further waste being brought onto a site.  
 
The second power gives NRW and the local authorities (LAs) the ability to 
require an occupier or land owner to undertake specified action on their land 
in relation to waste unlawfully kept or unlawfully disposed of. An occupier or 
land owner may be required to remove the waste from land within 21 days 
and/or take action to eliminate or reduce the consequences of the keeping or 
disposal of the waste. This supplements the current provisions under sections 
59 and 59ZA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (EPA 1990) to serve a 
notice on an occupier or landowner requiring them to remove waste from land 
which has been deposited unlawfully and/or to take steps to eliminate or 
reduce the consequences of the deposit.  
 
The current powers are being extended to include wastes which are 
unlawfully present on a site regardless of whether they were originally 
deposited lawfully. The new powers will cover sites where waste was initially 
deposited lawfully under an environmental permit or registered exemption but 
subsequently became unlawful once the operator breached the conditions of 
the permit /exemption or the regulators have revoked a permit or de-
registered an exemption. In some cases, the occupiers of the site keep the 
waste on land and in others, the occupier’s business has been liquidated and 
occupiers abandon the site. As a result, waste is left at sites with no funding to 
clear up the waste and any costs to clear up usually falls to the public purse. 
 
The Welsh Government has consulted the industry on two occasions and they 
support these proposals. It is important the regulators have these powers to 
enable them to take effective action against poor performing or illegal waste 
sites who undermine and undercut the law-abiding majority. As well as 
helping to create a level playing field, these powers will help strengthen the 
measures available under the EU Waste Framework Directive to ensure 

                                            
1 Natural Resources Wales – Waste Crime Review (2017). Available on request from NRW.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 
5 

 

waste management is carried out without endangering human health and 
harming the environment.  
 
Implementing these powers will also help reduce the number of abandoned 
waste sites by expanding regulators’ powers to serve a notice on occupiers 
and owners requiring them to take action to remove waste unlawfully kept or 
disposed of on their land. More needs to be done by landowners when they 
lease their land to others for a waste activity to ensure their tenants comply 
with the conditions of their lease and act in accordance with any planning or 
environmental permit conditions. We expect landowners to be vigilant and do 
more on their part to check their land to ensure it is not being used for any 
illegal activities. 
 
Following feedback from the industry, a transitional period of two months has 
been introduced for the power to remove waste from land to come into force 
two months after the regulations are made. This will give occupiers and 
owners (“landowners”) time to become aware and understand the changes 
and for NRW to engage with landowners to raise awareness of their potential 
liabilities. These powers will minimise the costs to the public purse in dealing 
with fires or waste clearance at permitted, exempt or illegal sites.  
 
These Regulations are part of a suite of measures aimed at tackling waste 
crime in Wales. 
 
5. Consultation 

A Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) has been completed alongside this 
Explanatory Memorandum. Details of consultations undertaken are included 
in the RIA in Part 2.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



 
6 

 

PART 2 – REGULATORY IMPACT ASSESSMENT (RIA) 
 

Options 
 
Two options have been considered for implementing these proposals: do 
nothing or legislate to bring these powers into force. 
 
Do nothing: this would see none of the provisions in this instrument enacted. 
The problems caused by poor performing, illegal and abandoned waste sites 
as well as other criminal actions involving the treatment, keeping, deposit or 
disposal of waste would continue to affect the environment and surrounding 
communities.  
 
Non-legislative options are not viable to fulfil policy objectives. Enforcement of 
the waste site sector needs to be underpinned by legislation and powers to 
enable the regulators to enforce against illegal activity. 
 
Option 1: Bring into force the following powers: 
 
Power 1: Restrict access to waste sites – to give NRW powers to tackle 
poor performing and illegal waste sites by restricting access to premises 
through physical means. Two provisions are provided: a Restriction Notice 
and a Restriction Order. NRW will have the power to serve a restriction notice 
for a maximum period of 72 hours or apply to the Magistrates Court for a 
Restriction Order for up to 6 months (although that period could be extended 
by application to the Court).  
 
Scope of power 
This power will apply to waste sites permitted under the EPR and those 
operating under exemptions. The power will also apply to sites operating 
illegally and do not have a permit in place. This will ensure a consistent and 
balanced approach to regulation and help tackle illegal sites who fail to 
comply with the law despite regulators’ efforts to enforce and close the sites. 
There is a provision for compensation which is limited to owners/occupiers of 
other sites affected by the order. The occupier of the site to which the order 
relates cannot apply for compensation under the new power.   
 
Rights of occupiers and owners of land  
A restriction notice is aimed at prohibiting persons delivering waste to a site. It 
cannot prevent access to a site’s occupier or owner. The regulator can relax 
the prohibition by specifying the persons, the times and circumstances where 
it does not apply (with or without conditions). The restriction order prohibits 
access to all persons (including occupiers and owners). When granting an 
order, it is for the Court to relax the provision by specifying the persons, the 
times and circumstances where the prohibition does not apply (with or without 
conditions). Occupiers and owners may appeal against decisions to make, 
extend, vary or discharge a restriction order.  
 
Power 2: Require all waste at sites to be removed - expand the existing 
powers under section 59 (occupier) and section 59ZA (landowner) of the EPA 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



 
7 

 

1990 to also allow regulators to require the removal of waste that is being 
unlawfully kept or unlawfully disposed of by occupiers (including where the 
deposit was made lawfully). If an occupier fails to comply with a notice 
requiring the removal of waste or cannot be found, then landowners can be 
held liable. 
 
Forward looking power  

It is proposed this power will be forward looking. It will only apply to the 
unlawful keeping or disposal of waste which is deposited after the power 
comes into force (whether it is a new or an existing site). NRW already has 
the power to remove waste unlawfully deposited which is around 75% of the 
total volume of waste at abandoned sites. 

 
Transitional arrangements 
To address comments made by the industry at the second consultation, a 
transitional period of two months is provided to give additional time for 
occupiers and owners to become aware and understand the changes. NRW 
have advised they will use a combination of evidence to show the deposit was 
made after the power comes into force. Evidence include waste transfer notes 
(‘written information’ requirements under the Waste (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2011), quarterly waste returns submitted by operators to NRW 
and Value Added Tax receipts to determine when the waste was deposited.  
 

Costs and Benefits 
 
Costs 
Do nothing:  
This option provides the baseline against which to assess the costs and 
benefits of the proposed intervention.  As such, there are no additional costs 
or benefits associated with this option.   
 
There are currently 39 permitted sites which NRW categorise as poor 
performers (Band D, E and F compliance bands under their Compliance 
Classification system) in 20152. Around 11 of these sites have been in poor 
performance bands for more than two years. In 2017, NRW identified there 
were 11 significant illegal sites operating3. The ‘do nothing’ option would see 
problems from these poor performing and illegal waste sites continue causing 
significant environmental issues and impact to the local communities. 
 
NRW estimate on average 3 sites a year in Wales become abandoned.  
 
Regulation of the waste sector needs to be underpinned by legislation and 
enforcement powers which enable the regulators to successfully prosecute 
illegal activity. NRW have identified these powers will help boost their 
available enforcement tools under the Environmental Permitting Regime and 
other powers such as the Environmental Protection Act.  
 

                                            
2 Natural Resources Wales - Annual Regulation report 2016. Available on request from NRW. 
3 Natural Resources Wales – Waste Crime Review (2017). Available on request from NRW. 

Tudalen y pecyn 23



 
8 

 

Option 1 
Power 1: Restrict access to waste sites 
NRW have estimated they would serve an average of 1 restriction notice 
followed by an application to the Magistrates Court for 1 restriction order a 
year, usually both for the same site.  
 
Costs to business 
The power to restrict access to a site would be used by NRW if there is a risk 
of serious pollution as a result of the treatment, keeping, deposit or disposal of 
waste or where there is ongoing pollution as a result of failure of compliance. 
NRW would act to serve the notice if it is necessary to prevent that risk or to 
prevent actual pollution from continuing.  
 
NRW is required to comply with relevant guidelines including the Regulator’s 
Code of Practice and the general principles in their Enforcement and 
Prosecution Policy. Any enforcement action taken by NRW will be 
proportionate and will take into account the background of the site including 
its history of permit breaches, operator performance and failure to act on 
previous NRW advice. The powers will be used to take action against non-
compliant and poorly operating businesses who by operating in such a way 
may be avoiding costs of managing the waste correctly.    
 
Occupiers and owners may appeal against decisions to make, extend, vary or 
discharge a restriction order. The proposal includes a provision for 
compensation which is limited to owners/occupiers of other sites affected by 
the order, the occupier of the site to which the order relates cannot apply for 
compensation under the new power.   
 
Businesses operating within the law are not expected to incur any direct costs 
as a result of these regulations.  However, legitimate occupiers (usually waste 
operators) could face some indirect costs as a result of this power such as 
paying increased rent to landlords who could seek to cover potential liabilities, 
or where there is a need to vary leases. This will depend upon the individual 
agreements in place between landowners and occupiers.  
 
Landowners could face some indirect costs caused by the activities of a non-
compliant business on their land. For example, a landowner may lose rental 
income if the operator’s gates are locked.  However, the financial impact is 
likely to be limited by the small number of times this power is expected to be 
used each year and will depend on individual agreements between the 
landowner and / or occupier.   
 
Power 2: Require all waste at sites to be removed  
NRW estimate they would apply the new power to three sites per year. Of 
those three cases, NRW estimate the power will be applied to 2 occupiers 
(usually waste operators). In the third case, if the occupier fails to comply with 
a notice or cannot be found, the notice would be applied to the landowner to 
require them to clear the site.  
 
Costs to business 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



 
9 

 

 
a) Costs to occupiers 

Whilst the new powers will increase the regulators’ ability to require 
landowners to remove waste which is unlawfully kept, or disposed of, from 
their land, NRW will focus their efforts on those who carry out illegal waste 
activities.   
 
Based on the power being used for 3 sites each year and NRW/Environment 
Agency (EA) data for an average illegal waste site, non-compliant occupiers 
would face estimated annual costs to clear the waste ranging from £53,700 to 
£169,200. Cost depends on whether the waste is classified as non-hazardous 
or inert4 and includes administrative or legal consultation costs which are 
estimated to be one day (around 7 hours) at £300 per hour per affected site. 
These costs could increase if the occupier decides to appeal or if the waste is 
hazardous. Further information on the calculation of these costs is at Annex 
A.  
 

b) Costs to landowners  
Landowners who lease land for waste activities could be counted as 
compliant businesses. The estimated cost to the landowner to clear waste 
from their land, based on the power being used once per year, would range 
between £26,850 and £84,600. This depends on whether the waste is 
classified as non-hazardous or inert and includes administration or legal 
consultation costs estimated to be one day (around 7 hours) at £300 per hour 
per affected site. These costs could increase if the landowner decides to 
appeal or if the waste is hazardous. The above estimate is based on data held 
by NRW/EA on typical illegal waste sites. The actual cost to a landowner will 
depend upon the volume and type of illegal waste deposited on their land and 
could be significantly larger. 
   
Landowners should already check their properties from time to time to ensure 
it is not being used for any illegal activities and that an occupier is acting in 
accordance with their environmental permit. To reduce the numbers of 
abandoned waste sites, landowners where they lease their land to others for a 
waste operation should be vigilant to ensure their tenants comply with the 
conditions of their lease and act in accordance with any planning or 
environmental permit conditions.  
 
Costs to Natural Resources Wales 
 
NRW have identified a number of administrative changes will be needed to 
their internal guidance, staff warranting, training and notice templates. These 
would be one off costs and are likely to be negligible. NRW further expect the 
use of these powers would lead to an overall reduction in costs over time as it 
will allow NRW to intervene more effectively, reducing the need for other 
enforcement action or clean-up of sites by NRW. 

                                            
4 Costs to clear the waste have been estimated at £150 per tonne for non-hazardous waste 
including all costs associated with loading, transport and landfill disposal. Inert waste for 
landfill disposal has been calculated at £45 per tonne.  

Tudalen y pecyn 25



 
10 

 

When taking enforcement action on permitted sites, costs to NRW is covered 
by Grant in Aid from Welsh Government and may be reclaimable from costs 
awarded by the Courts. The instrument also includes provisions for NRW to 
apply to the court to reimburse costs (from the occupier or owner of the 
premises) incurred from any action taken to secure the premises during a 
restriction order. Under the widened section 59 power, whilst the cost of 
clearing the site would fall on two occupiers and one landowner, the 
administrative cost to NRW of applying the power would be three occupiers 
and one landowner. If NRW considers it necessary to take action to remove 
the waste from land or eliminate or reduce the consequences of the unlawful 
keeping or disposal of the waste, NRW is entitled to recover the costs 
incurred from the occupier of the land or from any person who kept or 
disposed, or knowingly caused or knowingly permitted the keeping or disposal 
of the waste.  

 
Impact to Judicial System 
 
A Justice Impact Test was carried out on the impact of the policy / legislative 
proposals on the justice system in England and Wales. The impact to the 
judicial system is expected to be minimal as NRW estimate they would serve 
an average of 1 restriction notice followed by an application to the Magistrates 
Court for 1 restriction order a year (usually both for the same site). In certain 
cases, the Magistrates Court may extend a restriction order longer than six 
months to restrict access to stop the risk of pollution or actual pollution. If the 
occupier or owner of the premises appeals the Restriction Order, the Crown 
Court will handle the appeals. There may be cases where non-compliance of 
the restriction order occurs resulting in the occupier or owner or any other 
person breaching the restriction notice/order being committed to custody. 
 
It is possible for the occupier or owner to seek legal aid for their defence in 
Magistrates or Crown Court provided the conditions of receiving Legal Aid are 
satisfied. The proposals could therefore increase Legal Aid costs, however, 
given an average use of the powers being one case per year, the effect is 
likely to be minimal.  
 
Benefits of introducing the new powers  
 
The two new powers will help tackle illegal and poor performance in the waste 
industry. They will help to reduce the risk of harm to the environment and 
human health from pollution incidents and to reduce problems with odour, 
litter, fly infestations and the potential for waste fires. Compliant businesses 
will benefit from increased competitiveness and costs to the public purse in 
dealing with fires or clearance at waste sites will be reduced. 
 
While the cost of dealing with a fire at a waste site will vary on a case by case 
basis, the Chief Fire Officers Association estimates that the cost of dealing 
with waste site fires across the UK is approximately £16 million per year. 
Introducing these powers will help reduce fire risks associated with waste 
disposal at abandoned sites. In 2017, NRW identified burning waste at both 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



 
11 

 

permitted and unpermitted sites costs up to £1.1 million5. The cost has been 
estimated on data held by NRW on illegal waste sites. The actual cost of a fire 
will depend upon the volume and type of waste and could be significantly 
larger. For example, the cost of dealing with an illegal waste fire at a former 
tyre factory in Swansea in 2011 was in excess of £1.5 million5. This provides 
an indication of the cost involved in dealing with illegal waste fires and the 
potential savings that could be made.  
 
In terms of quantifiable benefits, it is possible to produce an estimate of 
certain environmental and social benefits based on data held by the NRW and 
EA.  Based on a ‘typical’ illegal waste site, the new powers are expected to 
result in the following environment and local community benefits: 
 

1. Environment (avoided damage) = £7,200 
2. Local communities (avoided disamenity) = £23,600 – £23,800 

 
The total benefit of introducing the new powers is approximately £31,000.  
Further information on the calculation of the benefits is at Annex A. 
 
There are further non-monetised benefits of introducing these powers which 
include: 

 avoided greenhouse gas emissions and reduced serious pollution and 
mistreated/abandoned waste; 

 protect the environment and local communities affected by waste 
crime; 

 powers act as a deterrent on future non-compliance. 
 
Summary of Costs and Benefits 
Option 1 provides NRW with enhanced powers to tackle waste crime in Wales 
and is expected to result in environmental, economic and social benefits.  For 
this reason, Option 1 is the preferred option.  The impact on business, 
charities or voluntary bodies is between £26,850 and £84,600 which is the 
cost on landowners from the introduction of these powers.  As explained 
above, these figures are based on NRW/EA data for a ‘typical’ illegal waste 
site and the actual cost to landowner could be significantly more depending 
upon the volume and type of waste found.  Other costs incurred by 
businesses or individuals who do not comply with the law are not included in 
the summary figures.  
 

Consultation 
 
First consultation 
In 2015, the Welsh Government and Defra carried out a joint consultation for 
10 weeks on six proposals to give NRW and the Environment Agency powers 
to tackle waste crime. Over 2,100 organisations in England and Wales 
including local authorities and representatives of the waste industry and 
landowners were contacted. Around 112 responses were received by local 
authorities, individual companies, trade associations, other public bodies (this 

                                            
5 Natural Resources Wales – Waste Crime Review (2017). Available on request from NRW. 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



 
12 

 

includes various fire and rescue services and local authority representative 
organisations), private individuals, professional bodies, consultancies and 
non-governmental organisations (NGOs). A majority of respondents (80%) 
supported all of the six proposals. 
 
Four of the proposals have been enacted in The Environmental Permitting 
(England and Wales) (Amendment) (No. 3) Regulations 2015 which came into 
force in October 2015. This instrument implements the remaining two 
proposals. 
 
(i) Power to restrict access to premises 
An overwhelming majority (90%) of those who responded were in favour of 
allowing the regulators to restrict access to premises (including those 
operating illegally without a permit). The Government Response to the 
consultation outlined our approach to engage further with the regulators and 
other government departments to develop legislation to restrict access and 
consider the case as to whether the powers being developed should be 
applied more widely than just waste sites. The proposed power has been 
widened to a risk of serious pollution created by the deposit, treatment, 
keeping or disposal of waste. The proposed power will therefore apply at any 
premises involved in these activities and not just sites engaged in waste 
management activities. 
 
(ii) Power to give regulators ability to serve notice to remove waste from land 
Another overwhelming majority (93%) of those who responded supported the 
proposal to widen the regulators’ ability to require the removal of waste from 
land. Organisations and individuals based in Wales who responded were 
unanimously in favour of this proposal. The only caveats came from two trade 
associations who wanted the enforcement response to be proportionate to the 
scale of the non-compliance and associated environmental impact particularly 
when in relation to spreading permitted waste to land. Another trade 
association wanted the regulator to involve landowners at all stages of the 
permitting process and that NRW should not be absolved of responsibility 
when it come to clearing or remediating sites.  
 
The summary of responses to the consultation and the Government response 
is available at: Waste crime: improving enforcement powers to reduce 
persistent non-compliance at waste handling sites 
 
Second consultation 

The Welsh Government and Defra undertook a further targeted 4 week 
engagement between 12 April and 10 May 2017 to those who responded to 
the first consultation. Views were also sought on getting the balance right 
between the regulator’s ability to restrict access and occupier or owners’ 
rights, the obligations on occupiers and owners and the transition period for 
the power to remove waste from land.  
 
Eight responses were received comprising three waste management 
companies, two legal bodies, two professional bodies and one local authority. 
Around 88% supported the proposals on the two powers. The majority of 

Tudalen y pecyn 28

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/waste-crime-improving-enforcement-powers-to-reduce-persistent-non-compliance-at-waste-handling-sites
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/waste-crime-improving-enforcement-powers-to-reduce-persistent-non-compliance-at-waste-handling-sites


 
13 

 

those who responded provided useful information and sought further clarity on 
the use of the powers by the regulators. Other comments were made on:- 

- the need for more funding and resources to be directed to tackle waste 
crime generally; 

- the transition period of two months for the power to remove waste 
being sufficient to allow occupiers and owners time to become aware 
and understand the proposed changes; 

- seeking assurance regulators will act in a proportionate and reasonable 
manner and clarity on how the two powers would work; 

- reinforcing the focus of the regulator on illegal or poorly managed sites 
only and to have stronger powers to resolve problem sites; 

- seeking clarity on costs of clearing sites and on the cleared waste 
being dealt with properly; 

- assurance the regulators will adopt a pragmatic approach and use 
reasonable efforts to find and pursue occupiers before requiring 
landowners to clear the waste.  

The response to this consultation is available on request from Welsh 
Government. Feedback was received on costs of implementing these powers, 
in particular, the estimates of the average administrative and legal 
consultation costs (which an occupier or owner of the land would incur after 
being served a notice to remove waste) were considered to be on the low 
side. The estimates of the average costs in this Impact Assessment have 
been increased to reflect the input from the responses received.  
 

Competition Assessment 
 
There are no expected detrimental effects on competition as the legislation is 
aimed specifically to tackle waste crime and poor performing sites in the 
waste industry. Only those businesses whose activities focus on the 
treatment, keeping, deposit or disposal of waste will be affected. The numbers 
for these are expected to be a small fraction of the waste industry.   
 

The competition filter test 

Question Answer 
 

Q1: In the market(s) affected by the new regulation, 
does any firm have more than 10% market share? 

No 

Q2: In the market(s) affected by the new regulation, 
does any firm have more than 20% market share? 

No 

Q3: In the market(s) affected by the new regulation, 
do the largest three firms together have at least 
50% market share? 

No 

Q4: Would the costs of the regulation affect some 
firms substantially more than others? 

No 

Q5: Is the regulation likely to affect the market 
structure, changing the number or size of 
businesses/organisation? 

No 

Q6: Would the regulation lead to higher set-up costs 
for new or potential suppliers that existing suppliers 

No 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



 
14 

 

The competition filter test 

Question Answer 
 

do not have to meet? 

Q7: Would the regulation lead to higher ongoing 
costs for new or potential suppliers that existing 
suppliers do not have to meet? 

No 

Q8: Is the sector characterised by rapid 
technological change? 

No 

Q9: Would the regulation restrict the ability of 
suppliers to choose the price, quality, range or 
location of their products? 

No 

 

Specific Impacts 
 

Officials have carried out a number of mandatory impact assessments which 
are available on request:- 

- Welsh Language Impact Assessment (WLIA) concluded the powers would 

not directly impact on the Welsh Language. The regulations, being 

composite, will be issued in English only. 

 

- Rights of the Child Assessment concluded no identifiable conflict with 

United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child and these proposals 

have no negative impacts on children and young people. These proposals 

will bring positive action, intended to tackle illegal waste activity which 

harms the environment and threatens human health;  

 
- Equalities Impact Assessment concluded no impact on Equality Act 2010 

and Welsh Government engaged with the relevant stakeholders who 

provided no response to the consultation; 

 
- Rural Proofing Assessment – the rural proofing screening tool concluded 

the powers would bring positive benefits in rural areas by reducing the 

numbers of poor performing and illegal waste sites with associated issues 

of fly infestations, odour and risk of fires; 

 
- Privacy Impact Assessment concluded there would be no additional data 

protection issues arising from this regulation.  

 
- Justice Impact Test – signed off by Ministry of Justice and available on 

request.  

 
- Powers of Entry Gateway form – to enforce a restriction notice or order, 

NRW will need to enter the premises to secure access, for example 

entering a waste site to shut and padlock the gates. To do so, they will be 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



 
15 

 

able to rely on the existing power of entry under section 108 of the EA 

1995. A Home Office led gateway process has been set up to consider 

proposals for new/amended/re-enacted powers of entry which has been 

signed off by Home Office.  

 

Post Implementation Review 
 
The regulators will provide information to Welsh Government on the usage of 
the powers, in particular, the number of times the powers have been used. 
We will ask the regulators to assess the use and effectiveness of these 
powers and inform Welsh Government of their findings. 
 
 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 31



 
16 

 

Annex A - Further information on calculation of costs and 
benefits 

 
Impact on waste operators  
 
Volume of waste  
Using the abandoned sites as a proxy for the volume of waste that will be 
cleared, NRW/EA estimate the average amount of waste present on 
abandoned sites is 2,200 tonnes per site and the average split of lawfully or 
unlawfully deposited waste is 25% (lawful) / 75% (unlawful). This equates to 
an estimate of 550 tonnes of waste per site that would have been initially 
lawfully deposited. 
 
Costs of clearing waste 
The regulators have estimated the costs to clear waste based on quotes they 
received in 2015. This is £150 per tonne for non-hazardous wastes, including 
all costs associated with loading, transport and ultimate disposal at landfill. 
For inert wastes, the figure used is £45 per tonne if sent to landfill.  
 
The regulators have advised that costs for clearing hazardous waste should 
not be factored into the calculations. There are a relatively small percentage 
of sites containing hazardous waste and the quantities of any hazardous 
waste at these sites are relatively small e.g. only 3% of the 989 illegal waste 
sites stopped in England and Wales in 2015/16 had hazardous waste 
recorded as the primary waste type. NRW have also reported that there are 
currently no known poor performers in the hazardous waste sub-sector in 
Wales. As the majority of any disposal costs come from landfill tax, the 
difference between non-hazardous and hazardous is relatively small. 
 
The estimated costs of removing 550 tonnes of initially lawfully deposited 
waste per site would therefore be: 
 

1. Inert waste: 550 tonnes x £45 = £24,750 
 

2. Non-hazardous waste: 550 tonnes x £150 = £82,500 
 
Costs to business  
This power would apply to occupiers (usually waste operator) acting illegally 
beyond their permitted conditions. Based on the power being applied to 
occupiers of 2 sites per year, the cost to these non-compliant occupiers from 
this power would range from £53,700 to £169,200 for waste treatment, 
including £300 administration and legal costs for an estimated one day 
(around 7 hours).  
 

1. (2 sites x £24,750) + (2 sites x £2,100) = £53,700 
 

2. (2 sites x £82,500) + (2 sites x £2,100) = £169,200 
 
This power would not be applied to compliant operating businesses. 
Compliant business will benefit from increased competitiveness in the waste 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



 
17 

 

industry and reduced criminal activity, leading to increased revenue and 
profits to compliant businesses. 
 
Impact on landowners  
NRW estimate that they would use the new power once a year on 
landowners.  
 
Volume of waste  
The volume of waste at abandoned sites, 550 tonnes per site, will also be 
used as a proxy for the volume of waste that will be cleared.  
 
Costs to clear waste  
The costs to clear waste will be as above. Inert waste = £24,750 and non-
hazardous waste = £82,500. Based on 1 waste site a year, the cost to the 
landowners would range between £24,850 and £82,600 including £300 per 
hour for an estimated one day (around 7 hours) in administration and legal 
costs.  
 

1. (1 site x £24,750) + (1 site x £2,100) = £26,850 
 

2. (1 site x £82,500) + (1 site x £2,100) = £84,600 
 
Costs to business  
In this case, waste site landowners could be counted as compliant businesses 
and cost to the landowners would range between £26,850 and £84,600 
(figures rounded up). Landowners should already check that the occupier of 
the site is acting in accordance with their permit so there would be no further 
costs on landowners from the new power.  
 
Benefits of introducing the two new powers to the environment and 
local communities 
 
An Environment Agency report produced by Ricardo on Waste Crime 
Intervention and Evaluation Project6 provided evidence to help calculate the 
benefits per tonnes of waste which the regulators can require 
occupiers/owners to clear. Please note that figures have been rounded up.  
 
Power 1: Restrict access to non-compliant site to stop further waste entering 
the site. NRW estimate one site will be subject to a restriction order and 
notice. We estimate this power will help prevent the build-up of 2,200 tonnes 
of waste at a site, which is based on the average amount of waste present on 
an abandoned site.  
 

1. 1 site x 2,200 tonnes per site = 2,200 tonnes 
 

                                            
6 Environment Agency Technical Report (2016) on the Waste Crime Intervention and 
Evaluation Project, produced by Ricardo for the Environment Agency. Link:- 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/662841/Waste_crime_interventions_an
d_evaluation_-_report.pdf 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 33

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/662841/Waste_crime_interventions_and_evaluation_-_report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/662841/Waste_crime_interventions_and_evaluation_-_report.pdf


 
18 

 

Power 2: Require all waste at sites to be removed. NRW estimate the new 
powers will be used on three sites and this power will help clear an estimated 
total of 1,650 tonnes of waste that was initially lawfully deposited: 
 

1. 2 occupier sites + 1 landowner site = 3 sites  
2. 3 sites x 550 tonnes per site = 1,650 

 
Environment Benefits 
 
The latest data from Ricardo’s report estimates the environmental costs of 
waste on illegal waste sites is £1.86-£1.88 per tonne7. It has been assumed 
the benefits of avoided environment damage of illegal waste sites are on 
average £1.87 per tonne.  
 
   Power 1  Power 2 

1. £1.87 x (2,200  +  1,650)  = £7,200 
 
The total benefit to the environment resulting from removal and restriction 
tonnages is £7,200 per year. 
 
Local communities  
The latest data from the EA and Ricardo’s report estimates that the benefits of 
avoided disamenity per tonne are £6.12 - £6.188. The total benefit to the 
environment is £23,600 - £23,800.  
 

1. £6.12 x (2,200 + 1,650) = £23,600 
2. £6.18 x (2,200 + 1,650) = £23,800  

 
 
 

                                            
7 Study to Estimate the Disamenity Costs of Landfill in Great Britain, Report for DEFRA, February 2003. Available at:- 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130402151656/http:/archive.defra.gov.uk/environment/waste/strategy/le
gislation/landfill/documents/landfill_disamenity.pdf  
8 Range is from a study by Enviros Consulting Ltd, and EFTEC (2004). Valuation of the External Costs and Benefits 
to Health and Environment of Waste Management Options, Report for the Department for Environment, Food and 
Rural Affairs, December 2004. Available at:- 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130123162956/http:/www.defra.gov.uk/environment/waste/research/heal
th/pdf/costbenefit-valuation.pdf  

Tudalen y pecyn 34



 

SL(5)180 - Rheoliadau Gorfodaeth Gwastraff (Cymru a Lloegr) 

2018 

Cefndir a Phwrpas 

Mae'r offeryn hwn yn diwygio dwy Ddeddf Seneddol i roi pwerau i reoleiddwyr fynd i'r afael â 

gweithgarwch anghyfreithlon yn y sector gwastraff sy'n cynnwys safleoedd a drwyddedir o dan Reoliadau 

Trwyddedu Amgylcheddol (Cymru a Lloegr) 2016 ("EPR") neu sydd wedi'u heithrio o'r gofyniad i gael 

trwydded.  

Diwygir Deddf yr Amgylchedd 1995 ("EA 1995") i fewnosod adrannau 109A i 109N newydd i roi i Gyfoeth 

Naturiol Cymru (NRW) y gallu i wahardd/cyfyngu mynediad i safleoedd gwastraff a drwyddedir a rhai 

anghyfreithlon trwy ddulliau ffisegol ac i ddiogelu adeiladau yn erbyn mynediad. 

Diwygir Deddf Diogelu'r Amgylchedd 1990 ("EPA 1990") i ehangu pwerau NRW (fel awdurdod 

rheoleiddio gwastraff Cymru) ac awdurdodau lleol (fel awdurdodau casglu gwastraff Cymru) i roi 

hysbysiad i feddianwyr neu berchnogion tir, gan eu gwneud yn ofynnol iddynt ymgymryd â gweithredu 

penodol ar eu tir mewn perthynas â gwastraff a gedwir yn anghyfreithlon neu a waredir yn 

anghyfreithlon, gan gynnwys ei symud. 

Y weithdrefn 

Cadarnhaol (cyfansawdd). 

Craffu Technegol 

Nodir un pwynt ar gyfer adrodd o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2(ix) mewn perthynas â'r offeryn hwn, sef na 

fydd yn cael ei wneud yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg. 

 Mae hwn yn offeryn cyfansawdd, sy'n golygu ei fod yn cael ei osod gerbron Cynulliad Cenedlaethol 

Cymru a Senedd y DU. Mae'r Memorandwm Esboniadol sy'n cyd-fynd â'r rheoliadau yn dweud "As this 

composite instrument is subject to approval by the National Assembly for Wales and by the UK 

Parliament, it is not considered reasonably practicable for this instrument to be made or laid bilingually."  

Craffu ar rinweddau  

Ni nodwyd unrhyw bwyntiau i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.3 mewn perthynas â'r 

offeryn hwn. 

Goblygiadau sy’n deillio o adael yr Undeb Ewropeaidd  

Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn rhan o "ddeddfwriaeth ddomestig sy'n deillio o'r UE" o dan gymal 2 o Fil yr UE 

(Ymadael) (y Bil), felly bydd y Rheoliadau hyn yn cael eu cadw fel cyfraith ddomestig a byddant yn parhau 

i gael effaith yng Nghymru ar ôl y diwrnod gadael. Mae'r Bil yn rhoi pŵer i Weinidogion Cymru addasu'r 

Rheoliadau hyn er mwyn delio â diffygion sy'n deillio o ymadael â'r UE, yn amodol ar rai cyfyngiadau.  

O ran y Gyfarwyddeb Wastraff, ni fydd y Gyfarwyddeb honno'n rhan o gyfraith ddomestig yn awtomatig 

ar y diwrnod gadael nac ar ôl y diwrnod hwnnw o dan y Bil. Fodd bynnag, os yw llys neu dribiwnlys wedi 

cydnabod, cyn y diwrnod gadael, fod Cyfarwyddeb yr UE yn rhoi hawl i unigolyn y gall yr unigolyn 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 

ddibynnu arno a'i orfodi yn y gyfraith, yna bydd yr hawl hwnnw'n rhan o gyfraith ddomestig ar y diwrnod 

gadael ac ar ôl y diwrnod hwnnw (gweler cymal 4 o'r Bil). 

Ymateb y Llywodraeth 

Nid oes angen ymateb gan y llywodraeth. 

Cynghorwyr Cyfreithiol 

Y Pwyllgor Materion Cyfansoddiadol a Deddfwriaethol 

25 Ionawr 2018 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 37

Eitem 5Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 40

Eitem 6 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Offerynnau nad ydynt yn cynnwys materion i gyflwyno adroddiad arnynt o dan Reol Sefydlog 21.2 na 21.3
	3.1 SL(5)180 - Rheoliadau Gorfodi Gwastraff (Cymru a Lloegr) 2018
	CLA(5)-05-18 - Papur 3 (Saesneg yn Unig)
	CLA(5)-05-18 - Papur 4

	5 Blaenraglen waith
	6 Y Pwerau ym Mil yr UE (Ymadael) i wneud is-ddeddfwriaeth

